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MAY IT PLEASE THE COURT 

1 This Memorandum of Counsel is filed on behalf of the Southland 

Regional Council (Council) in respect of the appeals against the 

Council's decision on the proposed Southland Water and Land Plan. 

2 This Memorandum addresses the Court’s Minute of 22 October 2020 

(Minute), in relation to Topics B6 and B7. 

Topic B7 

Pre-mediation timetable 

3 In its Minute, the Court set out directions in relation to the pre-mediation 

steps for Topic B7.1  In doing so, it commented that four weeks appears 

to be insufficient time for those pre-mediation steps to occur, and 

reserved leave for the parties to seek further or amended directions.2 

4 The Council agrees with the Court that four weeks is unlikely to be 

sufficient time for the pre-mediation steps directed.  Accordingly, the 

Council proposes to extend the pre-mediation timetable by two 

weeks.  This could be achieved by:  

(a) adding an additional week to the timetable between the circulation 

of the Council’s statement on the NPSFM, NESF, and Stock 

Exclusion Regulations (per [19](a) of the Minute) and the parties 

providing their interests and reasons for relief and/or any change in 

relief (per [19](b) of the Minute); and 

(b) adding an additional week to the timetable between the Council 

circulating technical papers for comment (per [19](c) of the Minute) 

and the due date for the final copy of the technical papers, the 

options paper, and the indication of the Council’s position (per 

[19](d) of the Minute).  

5 On this timetable, the first of the pre-mediation steps is due six weeks 

prior to mediation beginning, as opposed to the four weeks currently 

scheduled.   

6 Counsel for the Council conferred with the parties in relation to this 

proposed extension.  All of the parties that responded indicated their 

 

1 Minute of the Environment Court dated 22 October 2020, at [19]. 
2 Minute of the Environment Court dated 22 October 2020, at [19]-[20]. 
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support for the Council’s proposed extension to the pre-mediation 

timetable.3 

7 Accordingly, counsel for the Council respectfully seeks that the  

pre-mediation timetable be extended as provided above.  

Date of mediation 

8 In its Minute, the Court indicated that Mr Dunlop is available to facilitate 

the mediation of Topic B7 between 15 and 17 December 2020.  Based 

on the Court’s timetable, as set out at paragraph [19] of the Minute, the 

first step (being the statement to be circulated by the Council on the 

NPSFM, NESF and Stock Exclusion Regulations) would be due on 

Tuesday 17 November 2020.  However, based on the proposed 

extended timetable, the first step would have been due on Tuesday 3 

November 2020.   

9 Counsel for the Council considers that the Council does not have 

sufficient time to prepare the information required by the first two pre-

mediation steps, even if the Court were to decline to grant the extension 

to the timetable requested, in order to meet the deadlines for a 

mediation commencing on 15 December 2020.  

10 Given this, counsel for the Council respectfully seeks that mediation of 

Topic B7 be set down in the first quarter of 2021, instead of 15-17 

December 2020 as currently indicated.  

11 Counsel notes that it conferred with the parties in relation to this 

proposed change to the mediation date.  While responses were not 

received from all parties, all responses received were either supportive 

or neutral.  No parties opposed either the extension to the pre-mediation 

timetable or the change of mediation date.   

Topic B6 

12 At paragraph [15] of the Minute, the parties were directed to respond to 

the Court’s ADR suggestions for Topic B6 as set out at paragraph [5] of 

the Minute.   

 

3 Except for two parties who indicated that they had no interest in the matter.  
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13 For completeness, counsel for the Council notes that it is currently 

conferring with the parties who have an interest in Topic B6 in relation to 

this matter and will respond to the Court accordingly in due course. 

Directions  

14 Counsel for the Council respectfully seeks the following: 

(a) that the pre-mediation steps set out at paragraph [19] of the 

Court’s Minute be amended as indicated below: 

(i) the step at paragraph [19](a) be due six weeks prior to 

mediation; 

(ii) the step at paragraph [19](b) be due four weeks prior to 

mediation; 

(iii) the step at paragraph [19](c) be due fifteen working days 

prior to mediation; and 

(iv) the step at paragraph [19](d) be due five working days prior 

to mediation. 

(b) that the mediation of Topic B7 be set down in the first quarter of 

2021. 

 

DATED this 9th day of November 2020 

      

.............................................................. 

P A C Maw / A M Langford 

Counsel for the Southland Regional Council 
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